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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of
EDELWEISS COMTRADE LIMITED

Report op the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
QOpinion

We have audifed the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of EDELWEISS COMTRADE
LIMITED{"the Company™), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2018, and the
Statement of Profit and Loss (Including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in
Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statemments,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
{hereinafter referred to as Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements).

In cur opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given fo us, the
aforesaid Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2018,
and its loss, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash {lows for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

Ve conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing {SAs)specified under section
143{(10) of the Companies Acl, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Suditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements seclion of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Charlered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtaned is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

The Company's Board of Direclors is responsible for the cather information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board's report inciuding Annexure to Board's Reporl but
does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ repor thereon,

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In conneclion with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information; we are reguired to report that fact. We have nothing to report
tn this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Ind
AS Financial Slatements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Acl”) with respecl to the preparation of these Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements that give a trug and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting
Standards specified undersection 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selaction
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financiai statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstaterment, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Direclors is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concemn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
goncern and using the going cencern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or {0 cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporling
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our obiectives are to obtain reascnable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraudor error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our gpinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reascnably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financtal statements, whether due
to fraud or eror, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinicn. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting frem
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in ithe circumstances. Under section 143(3)i) of the

Companies Acl, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on wheather the

company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effecliveness of such controls. ot

b i

e
nableness of

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and e
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. { 3|
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exisis
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. |If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw allention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtamned up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to ¢ease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical reguirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matlers that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safequards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report} Order, 2016 (“the Qrder")issued by the
Gentral Government of India in terms of sub-section {11) of seclion143 of the Companies Acdl,
2013, we give in the “Annexure A'a statement on the mallers specified in paragraphs 3 and 4
of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3} of the Acl, we report that:

a)  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

bl  In our opinion, proper books of accourt as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in
Equity and the Cash Flow Statemment dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account.

d)  In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014,

e)  On the basis of the wrillen representations received from the direclors as on March 31,
2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a direclor in terms of Section 164(2) of the
A,

N With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls-¢ e
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such conl bt
Reporl in “Annexure B”. L 2N,
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g)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditers) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending ltigations on its financial
position in its financial statements. —

i. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

i. There were no amounts which were required o be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

FOR G. K. CHOKSI & Q.
[Firm Registration N 1895W)

SANDIP A. PARIKH

Pariner
Mem. Mo. 40727

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 9, 2019
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date on standalone Ind AS
financial statements of EDELWEISS COMTRADE LIMITED

(i}

{ii)

{iii}

fv}

(i)

{vii)

fa) The Company has mairtained proper records showing full parliculars, including
quantitative details and situaticn of its fixed assets.

(B The fixed assets have been physically verified by the management at reasonable
intervals having regard to size of company and nature of its assets. According to
information and explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

{c) The company does not have any immovable properly and accordingly clause 3 (i{c) of
the order in not applicable on the company.

The company does not hold any inventory as at the end of the year. Accordingly, the clauses
3fiij{a) to (c) of the order are not applicable.

As per the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any [oans,
secured or unsecured, to companies, firms or other parties covered in the Register maintained
under Section 189 of the Companies Acl, 2013;

in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, wherever applicable with
respect to the loans, investments, guarantees and securities.

According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits as defined in The Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules 2014. Accordingly, the
provisions of Clause 3{v}) of the Order are nat applicable to the Company.

Maintenance of cost records has not been prescribed by the Central Government under sub-
seclion {1) of Section 148 of the Companies Acl, 2013 for the class of companies to which the
Company belongs.

(a) According to the information given to us, the Company is generally regular in depositing
with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues and Company had no arrears of
such outstanding statutory dues as at March 31, 2019 for 2 period more than six months
from the date they became payable.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has no disputed
outstanding statutory dues as at March 31, 2019 ofher fhan siated befow -

Name of the Statute | Dues Rs. relates is pending

Period to which
Nature of | Amount ip | the amount | Forum where dispute

Income Tax  Acl, | Income Tax | 1,55,88840 | A Y. 2013-14 CIT{A)
1961
Finance Act, 1594 Service-tax 585428 | FY. 2004-2005 | Customs. Excise and

to | Service Tax Appellate
F.Y. 2011-2012 | Tribunal/Commissioner
of Service-tax (Appeal).

{wii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Cu_lfﬁpany does not have any

loans and borrowings from financial institutions, banks, gpver
holders during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of Clau
applicable to the Company. o

ent. or dues 10 debenture
{viiil} of the QOrder are not
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(x}

{i}

{xii}

(it}

fxiv)

{av)

{xvi}
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The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or furher public affer
{including debt instruments} during the year. According to the information and explanations
given to us, the company has also not raised money by way of termn loans during the year
under review,

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by company ar any fraud
on the company by its officers and employees have been noticed or reporled during the year.

Accarding to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not paidfprovided any managerial remuneratian
during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xi) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

In our opinien and accarding to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not a Nidhi coampany. Accordingly, paragraph 3{xii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, transactions with the related parties
are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act and details of transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Accarding to the information and explanations give to us, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures
during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into
nan-cash transactions with direclors or persons connected with him, Accordingly. paragraph
3{xv) of the Qrder is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A4 of the Resgrve Bank of

India Acl 1934

FOR G. K. CHOKSI & Q)

SANDIP A. PARIKH

Fartner
Mem. No. 40727

Place : Mumbai
Date ; May g, 2019

i
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors' Report of even date on the standalone Finangcial
Statements of EDELWEISS COMTRADE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause {i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial cortrols over financial reporting of EGELWEISS COMTRADE
LIMITEE {*the Company"} as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal contro! over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Repeorting issued by the Inslitute of Charlered Accourtants
of India ('ICAI'Y. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating eHeclively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safequarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
aceounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Campany's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Intermal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting {the “Guidance Note™) and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICA! and deemed to be prescribed under section 143{10) of the
Companies Acl, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controts, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Charered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Mote reguire that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained ang i
such controls operated eHectively in all material respects.

Qur audit invelves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating eflectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial contrals over financial reporing included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
agsessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditer's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
Qr error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for aur audit apinion an the Company's interna! financial controls system over financial reporling.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that

{1 pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transaclions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

{2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

{3} provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detecled. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequete because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial cantrols
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporling were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the intemal control over financial reporling
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Contrals Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

FOR G. X. CHOKSI 3
[Firm Registration

SANDIF A. PARIKH
Parner

Mem. No. 40727

Placse : Mumbai

Date : May 9, 2019 /}““*\
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Edelweiss Comtrade Limited
Balance Shast

ICurrenoy © ladias rupess in thouzands)

ALEETY

Financidl Assets

[ab Cath And ¢atn caavalents

[b] Aank nalances ather than casn and cash equivalents
(] Trade Aeceivables

[d] Loans

(e] Other finamcial assets

Hun-Nnandisl assets

{4 Currind 03 055018 fer)

{b) Ceterred tan assets ant)

|c) Praperty, Plant and Equipment
|d) Dither Intangife atsets

led eher aon franoal assets

TOTAL AS5ETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUNTY

Firancial liakilities
{a| Trade Payables
fih vetal ouistanding dued ab &ueso enterprizes and small enterprises

{ia) to3aF oy bsean@ing dues of creditors ather tham micro enterprises and sm'|

enferpnses
[b] Basrowings [cther than diebt securities)
|r] Dher fisancal habimowes

Hon-finantial liabilitic}

&) Courreal tae liabnhnes {net)
(kb Prgwvishong

feb Other mgn-finangial habilities

Equiry
[al Equily shire Copital
b her equity

TOTAL LEABILITIES AND EQLITY

igrificant accounting policies forming part of the finangs .
Significant timg pol f g part af the financial staterments

Thas is the Balance Sheet reed toin our repont of ceen date.

Far G, K. Chaksi & Co.
Chortergd Aeccountants
Firm's Registraiston M. 101

I - Parikh
P trer
Membership Na: 4072 F

Plage: Murbm
Date: May 9, 2015

Nole

10
11
12

13
14
15
16
17

a2
4

15
an

il
12
3

24
7%

Az al Byt Al
Mareh 31, Z01% March 31, AC18 Lpil 1, 2018
1815390 1va 45617 ELIF PR I
59,550.31 9,551 B 10.074.11
AR 7S A6 1195 55 1371550
24467 327.03 £24.9%
A%767560 320,771.949 32770065
475,545.13 533,300 6% 384.£48.71
549716 4,720.30 297537
B,2B3.53 BG4 62 T.101.66
5052 100518 1,503 34
1.0 044 18 57
8.454.20 9,066 2t 489594
21,014.30 20,553 33 1¢,49:.92
496,550.48 554,156.06 405, 144.63
- - 1iE.13
346,523 .00 24K,343. 77 21233052
106,894.34 22068518 1711 704 27
1,548, 84 16,401.34 i5,527 BR
45H, 966 I AES LEE 13 234,001 18
- 674 GBA G766

416.27 334 43 B4E 00
2,990 A1 362678 3,769 B4
3406 B8 4,685.02 5.390.30
200, [ICH).[HO 240, 2 34,6000.060
[253.813.63) 1225, 51809 {169,016 B5)
35,1486.37 B10EET) B, 3EZ. 15
496,559.43 554,156.06 406,144 53

For and onm behalf ot the Board of Diccctors

Cr s

Rajesh Mendon
Exetonfred Direcligr
DIM : QTG2TAES

Dirnezh Thadani
Chief Fingncigi Officer

Flace: purmiea:
Date: May 9, 2019

TN

T.K. Ramaswarmy

Duracmpr



Edefweiss Comtrade Limited

Statemeny of Profit and Loss

ICurrency  Indian rupees in thoysands)

Nole For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2013

Revenue from operations
Fae and commmssign infoms & 58,553.84 59,847, 0G
Intgrast income 27 1r,411.19 12,836,063
ther cperating revenue 2B - cb.d3
Total Revenua from operations EB&, 965,03 E1,751.13
Onher income 29 5,096, 38 O EBS
Tokal Income 92,061.41 B2,453.53
Expan suz
Fimance costs El] 21,378.98 22,164.38
Irnpalrament on Dnancial instruments ENS 143820 FI6.%5
Employee benefits expanse z a1 69378 o, 214,34
Bepreciation, amortisatian and ermpairment 15,16 f15.0% £32.02
Qthar expenses 33 54.279.70 48,342 98
Total expenses 119,405,75 132,1B1.04
Loss hefore tax [27,244.24) |49,727.06}
Tax EXpPENSES:
Curcent tax LL, R-LE [Ba2.71]
Deferred tax [222.71) 1,067.04
Loss for the year {27,553.54) [49,911.39}
Other Comprehensive Income
Earning per 2quity share [Face value of Rs_ 10 each)
Remeasurement loss an defined beneft plans §0C1) 1342.00) (3,573.00)
Other Comprehensive Income 1342.00] 13,573.00)
Tatal Camprehentive Incoame . [27,835 54] 153,2R%.39)
Earmings per equity share [Face value of T10each]: 35
{1) Basir [in As.) 0,451 [2.13)
{2] Ciluted {in R2.] 0,55} [2.13)
Sagruficant accounting policies forming part of the financial statements, 1-52

This is the statement of proflt ard loss referred toin our report of evers date.
For G. K- Cholsi & Co.

Chorered Accourtonts
Firm's Aegictration tfo. 101E35

For and ar behalf of {he Boar

(G

dlp A. Parikh Rajesh Mendon T.K. Ramagwarmy
Portner Executive Director
e mbiership No; 40727 ' DIN ;07827465

] .rd)" V
Rinesh Thadani
Chief Financial Qfffcer

Place: Mumbai
Crate: May 9, 2019

Comgedny Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 5. 2219



Edelweiss Comtrade Limited
Statement in changes in equity

{Curreney : Indian rupees in thousands)

As at Asat
A) Equity share capital March 3%, 20149 March 21, 2018
Balance as at beginning of the year 290,000.00 230,000.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year - 60,000.00
Balante at the end of the year 290,0q40.00 290,000.00
8] Other Equity
‘Particulars Deemed r.a'p;it_al 1" Retained Earnings C T Total :
contribution - ESO# |
L o fre_]_'er note @ below) | o ) J!
'galance at April 01,2017 ] B 552600  {174,542.85) (169,016.85)
ir'_l'otq } Comprehensive Income for the yaar N L - { 53,8815_3@]_: L {53,335,39}'
ESOP charge {3,011.85) - {3,011.85):
;Bal_am:g_gt_. March 31, 2018 (Ind AS) _ 251415 {223,432.24) iz_z_-.f._,am,us}'
!l‘?.ti I Com prehensiuje_ Income f_g:rr_'gr_'gg_ year - | {27,805.54) {27,855.54),
‘Balance at March 31, 2019 {Ind AS} 2,514.15 | {256,327.78) {253,813.63)

Note
a) Deemed capital contribution - ESOP

Cartain employees of the Company have heen granted options to acquire equity shares of the Hoiding Company (Edelweiss
Financial Services Limited), This reserve represents the cost of these options based on their fair value at the grant dates as
recognised over the vesting period of such aptions, ta the extent that the Holding Company has not recovered such cost from

the Company.

For G. K. Choksi &
Choartered Accounton
Firm's Registration No.

e
andip A. Parikh

Partner
Membership No; 40727

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 9, 2019

For and an behalf of the Board of Directors

Rajesh Mendan
Executlive Director
DIN - OFE2 7485

o t”

Dinesh Thadani
Chief Financial Officer

Flace: Mumbai
Date: May 9, 2019

T.K. Ramaswarmy
Director
DIM ;05158707

Corfpany Secretory



Edelweiss Camtrade Limited
Cash Flow Statement

{Currency - Indan rupees in thausands)

A Cash flow from operating activities

Lass hefore tax
Adiustments for
Gepreclation and amartization expenses

Provision for expected credt loss on trade receivables

Expense an Employee Stack Optian Scheme (E50F]
Lossf (Profn) an salef write-aff of fixed assals fnet}
Interest income
Interest BApENSE

Dperating cash flow before working capital changes
Adfustments for working capitol chonges
Decreasaf {Increase)] in trade receivables

fincreasa]f Decreate in loans and ather financial assets

Decrease/ {tncrease] in other non-financial assets

Increase in trade payables and other financial liabilitios

Decrease in hen financial liabilities

Cash used in aperatlons

Incanue taxes paid

Net cash used In aperaking activities - A
Cazh flow from Invasting activitles

Purchase of tangible and intangible aszets
53le of fixed assets
Inkerest received

ket cash jused In)f generated from investing activities - B

Cash Aorw fram financing activities

Progeeds from issue of share capital
{Repayment)) Proceeds from unsecured loan*
interest paid

Met cash [used in]f generated from financing activities - €
Net [decrease)f increase in cash and cash equivalenLls [ArB+C)

Cash and tash equivalent as at the heginming af the year
Cash and cash equivalent as at the end aof the year frefer note 8}

*het figures have been reported on account af valume of transactions.

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even data.

For the year ended
mazrch 3%, 2019

For the year erded
March 31, 2018

{27,344.34) (45,727 06)
615.08 633.02
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1. Bachground

Edelweiss Comtrade Limited [“the Company™) was incorporated in India on March 31, 1995 The Company
i a 100% subsidiary of Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited which in turn is a 100% subsidiary of
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited,

The Company is a member of Multi-commedity £xchange of |India Limited, National Commadity and
Berivatives Exchange Limited and NCDEX 2 Markets Limited (formerly known as NCDEX Spot Exthange
Limited]. The Company provides commedity broking services to the clients,

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Company has been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards [Ind A% notified under the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {as amended
from time 1o time},

For all periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2018, the Company prepared its financial
statements In accordance with accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the Companigs At
2013, read together with paragraph ¥ of the Companies (Accounts) Rulas, 2014 (Indian GALP or previous
GAAP). These financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 are the first financial statements of

the Company prepared under [nd AS5. Refer to note 51 for iInfermation on how the Company adapted Ind
A5

These Financial statermnents have been prepared on 3 historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments sueh as financial asset measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVQECI)
instruments, derivative financiat instruments, and other financial assets held far trading, which have been
measured at fair value through prefit or loss (FWTPL). The financial statements are presented in Indian
Rupees [INR) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousands, except when otherwise indicated.

1. Presentation of financial sLatements

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liguidity in compliance with the Division | of the
Schedule Nl to the Companies Act, 2013, An analysis regarding recovery or settlement within 12 months
after the reporting date {current) and more than 12 months after the reporting date {non—current} is
presanted in Note 38.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reparted gross in the balance sheet. They are only
offset and reporied net when, in addition te having an unconditional legafly enforceable right to offset
the recognised amountis without being contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to settla on a
net bagis in all of the following circumstances;

=  The normal course of business
»  The event of default
¢ The event of insolvency ar bankruptey of the company and or its counterparties
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3.

4.1

4.2

4.3

Significant accounting poalicies

Recognition of interest

Under Ind A5 209 interezt income s recarded using the effective interest rate [EIR} methad for all
financial instruments measured at amartised cost and debt instrumeant measvred at FVYOC, The EIR 1s the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected fife of the financial asset
to the gross carrying ameunt of the financial asset.

Financial Instruments

ay Date of recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities, with the exception of borrowings are initially recognised on the
trade date, i.e, the date that the Company becames a party to the contractual provistons of the
instrurnent. This inchudes regular way trades: purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assels within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the market place. The
Company recognises borrowings when funds are available for wtilisation to the Company,

b} Initial measurement of financial instruments

Fimancial assels and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction cests that are
directly attributable to the acguisition or issue of financial assets and financial Labilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss] are added to or deducted from
the fair valye of the finangial assets or financial liahilities, as appropriate, on initial recegnition.
Transaclion costs direclly attributable to *he acquisition of financial assets ar financial liabilities at fair

value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Classification of flnancial instruments
a} Financial assets:

The Company classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the assets and
the asset's contractual terms, measured at either:

*  Armortised cost
»  Fairvalue through other comprehensive income [FYOC)
v Fairvalue through profit or loss [PYTPLI

The Company measures debt fimancial assets that meet the following conditions at amorised cost:

» the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order
to collect cantractual cash flows; and

» the contractugl terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cazh flaws that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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4.3

Classification of financial instruments {Continued)
Qebt instrurnents that meet the following conditions are subsequently measuered at fair value through

other comprebensive income [except Tor debt instrements that are desipnated as at fair value through
profit or loss on initial recognition];

&« the finangial asset is held within a business model whose cbjective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and seting the financial assets; and

» the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding,.

By default, all ather financial assets are subsequently measured at FYTPL,
i Amaortized cost and Effective interast method:

The effective interest method is a methed of calculating the amortised eost of a debt instrument and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period.

For financial imstruments other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash recetpts {incloding all fees paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discaunts) excluding expactad cradit |osses, through the expected life of the debt instrumeant, or, where
appropriate, a shornter period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt instrument on initial recognition.
For purthased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, a credit-adjusted effective interest rate is
caloulated by discounting the estimated future cash flows, including expected credit losses, to the
amartised cost of the debt instrument on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial azset is the amount at which the financial astet is measured at initial
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisatior wsing the effective intergst
method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss
allewance, On the other hand, the gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amartised cost of a
financial asset before adjusting for any [oss allowance,

i, Investment in equity instruments

The Campany subsequently measures al equity investments at fair value through profit ar loss. However,
for equity investrnents in subsidiaries and associates, thess are measured at cost as permiited under Ind
AS 27

b} Financial liabilities;

all financial liahilities are measured at amortised cost except loan commitments, financial guarantees, and
derivative financial liabilities.
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4.4

Classification of financial instruments {Contfnued)

Cebt secunties and other borrowed funds

After initial measurement, debt issued and other barrowed funds are subsequently measured at
amportised cost. Amorlised cost is calodlated by taking into account any discount or premium on issue
funds, and costs that are an integral part of the EIR.

¢} Financial assets and Financial lizbilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets and financial liabilities in this catepary are those that are not held for trading and
randatorily required to be measured at fair value under Ind A5 109,

Financial assets and financial liabilities at FYTPL are recarded in the balance skeet at fair value. Changes in
fair value are recorded in profit and loss. Interest earned or incurred on instruments designated at FYTPRL
is accrued in imterest income ar finance cost, respectively, using the EIR, taking into account any distount/
prermiurm and aualifying transaction costs being an integral part of instrument, Interest earned on assets
mandaterily required to be measured at FYTFL is recorded using contractual interest rate,

d] Financial liabilities and eguity instruments

Financial instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities ar a5 equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arranpements and the definitions of a financial liability
angd an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
dedurling all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued hy a Company entity are recognised at the
proceeds recejved.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and decucted directly in equity. No
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Caompany's
o equity instrurnents,

Derecopnition of financial assets and financial liabilities

a]l  Derecognition of financial assets due to substantial modification of terms and conditions:

The Company derecoghises a financial asset, when the terms and conditions have been renegotiated to
the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new financial asset, with the difference recognised as a
derecogaition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment lo3s has not already been recorded,

If the modification daes not result in cash flows that are substantially differert, the medification does not
result in derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows discounted at the original EIR, the Company
records a modification gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already heen recorded.
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4.4

4.5

4.6

Derecognition of financial axsets and financial liakilities [Continwed)

bl Gerecognition of financial assets [other than due to substantiat modification):

A financial asset for, where applicable, a parl of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets] is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the finandial asset have expired. The
Company also derecognises the financial asset if it has both transferred the financial asset and the transfer
qualifies for derecognition. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial asset and
the consideration received would be recognised in profit or loss.

The Campany has transferred the financial aszetif, and ooly if, either:
& The Cormpany has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset; or

=t retains the rights ta the cash Aows, but has assurmed an obligation to pay the received cash flows
inn full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass—through’ arrangement.

c] Derecognition of financial fizbilities:

A financial liabiliby is derecognizsed when the ghligation wnder the liability is discharged, cancetted or
SXpires.

Whare an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, ¢r the terms of an ewisting financial liability are substantially modified, such an exchange ar
madification is treated as a derecognition of the griginal financial liahility and the recognition of a new
financial liability. The difference between the carrying value of the originat financial liability and the
consideration paid, including medified contractual cash flow recognised as new financial liahihty, would
be recognised in profit or loss,

Reclassification of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Campany does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart fram the
exceptionat circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line.
Finanrig| ltahilities are never reclassified.

Impairment of financial assets

The Cempany follows ‘simplified approach’ fer recognition of impairment lass allowance on trade
receivables and lease receivables, The application of simplified approach does net require the Company to
track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment Ioss allowance based on lifetime (Expacted
Credit Loss (ECLsY at each reporting date, right fram its initial recognition The Company uses a provision
matrix ta determina impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its receivables. The provision matrix is
based on its historicaliy observed default rates over the expected [ife of the receivables. However if
receivables contain a significant financing component, the Company chaoses as its aceounting policy to
measure the loss allowance by applying general approach to measure expected credit bosses.

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and sl the cash flows that the
Company expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate. The Company recognises an
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1.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

Impairment of financial assets {Continued)

impairment gain or loss in profit or less for all financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

Collateral valuation

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Company seeks to use collateral, whers possible, The
collateral comes in various forms, swch as cash, securities, leters of guarantees. Collateral, wnless
repossessed, is not recorded on the balance sheet. However, the fair value of collateral affects the
cabcufation of ECLs, It is generally assessed, at a minimum, at inception and re-assessed on a periodical
basis. However, some collateral, for example, cash or securities relating to margining requirerments, is
valued daily.

To the extent possible, the Company uses zctive market data for valuing financial assets held as collateral,
Cther finangial assets which do not have readily determinabie market values a-g valued wsing models.

Write off

Finamcial assets are writken off either partially or n their entirely only when the Company has no
reasonable expectation of recovery.

Determinatian of fair value

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet
date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset ar paid te transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market panticipants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumpticn that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

= Inthe principal market for the asset o liahility, or

* Inthe absence of a principal market, in the mest advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal ar the most advantageaus market must be accessible by the Camparny.

The fair value of an asset or a hability is measured usng the assumptions that market participanls would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their ecoramic best
interest. A fair value measurement of 2 non-financial asset takes into account a rmarket participant’s
ability to generate ecoromic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The Company uses
valuation techniques that are appropriate in the eircumstances and For which sufficient data are available
1o measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant ohservable inputs and minimising the use of
unabservable inputs. |n grder to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are
cfassified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised below;
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4.10

4.11

Detarmination of fair value {Continved)

»  level 1 financial instruments =Theose where the inputs used in the valvation are unadjusted quoted
prices from active markets for identical assets or liaklities that the Company has access to at the
measurement date. The Company considers markets as active anly if there are sufficient trading
activities with regards bto the velume and higuidity of the identical assets or lizbilities and when there
are binding and exercisable price quotes avaitable on the halance sheet date.

«  Level 2 financial instruments-Those wners the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant,
are derived from ditectly or indirectly ochservahle market data available over the entire pesiod of the
instrument’s life.

#  level 3 financial instruments -Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant
to the measurement as whole, For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financgial
statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred bebween
levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization [based on the lowest jevel input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole} at the end of 2ach reporting period. The
Company periodically reviews its valuation technigques including the adopted methodoiogies and
model calibrations,

Therefore, the Company applies various technigues to estimate the credit risk associated with its financial
instruments measured at fair value, which include s portfolio-based approach that estimates the
expected net expasure per counterparty over the full lifetime of the individual assets, in erder to reflec
the credit risk of the individual counterparties for non-cellateralised finangial instruments.

The Company evaluates the [evelling at each reporling perigd on an instrurnent-by-instrument Basis andg
reclassifies instruments when necessary based on the facts at the end of the reportiing period.

Revenua from cantract with customer

Revenus is measured al transaction price i.e. the amount of consideration to which the Company expects
to be entitlad in exchange For transferring promised goods ar services to the customer, excluding amaounts
collected on behalf of third parties. The Company consider the terms of the contract and its customary
business practices 1o determine the transaction price. Where the consideration promised 1s variable, the
Company excludes the estirmates of variable consideration that are constrained.

Brokerage inceme on commodities broking husiness s recognised as per contracted rates at the execution
of transactions on behalf of the customers on the trade date and is reflected net of related sub-brokerage
expenses, gpoods and service tax {"G5T"), transaction charges and stock exchange expenses.

Operating leases

Cperating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the staterment of profit and lass on a straight-
line basis ower the lease terrm, in which tase lease payments are recognized based on contractual terms.
Cantingent rental payable is recognized as an expense in the period inwhich it is incurred.
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4.12

4.13

4.14

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share /s computed by dividing the net profit afier tax attributable to the equity
sharenctders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares olistanding For the year.

Giluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other cortracts to
issuR equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed
by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity shareholders for the year by weighted
average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and weighted average

number of equity shares that could have been issued upan canversian of all potential equity shares.
Retirement and ather employee benefit
Frovident fund and natignal pension scheme

The Campany contributes ta a recognised provident fund and national peesion scheme which is a defined
contribution stheme. The contributions are accounted for on an accrual basis and recogrised in the
statement of profit and loss,

Gratuity

The Campany’s gratuity scheme is a defined bencfit plan. The Company's net obligation in respect of the
gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benef-t that the employees have

earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods, that benefis is discounted to determine
its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets, if any, is deducted. The present value of the
ohligation under such benefit plan is determined based an independent actuarial valuation uzing the
Frojected Unit Credit Method. Benefits in respect of gratuity are funded with an Insvrance company
approved by Insurance fegulatory and Development Authority [IRDA).

Remeasurements, camprising ef actuarial gains and lesses, the effect of the asset ceiling, exciuding
amounts included in net interest an the net defined henefit liability and the return on plan assets
lexcluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit habiiiby), are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OClin
the peried in which they oceur,

Remeazurements are not reclassified to profit or [oss in subsegquent periods.
Compensated Ahsences

The eligible employees of the Company are permitled to carry forward certain number of their annual
leave entitlement to subsequent years, subject to a ceiling, The Company recognises the charge in the
statement of profit and loss and corresponding liability on such non-vesting accurulated leave
entitlement based on a valuation by an independent actuary. The cost of providing anneal leave benelits
is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Share-based payment arrangements

Certain employees of the Company have heen granted equity-settled ESOPs by the wltimate parent
company [Edelweiss Financial %ervices Limited). The Company recognizes a cost with respect to the
services received from the said employees measured by reference to the fair value of the eguiry
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4.14

4.15

Share-based payment arrangements {Continued)

instrerments granted by the vltimate parent at the grant date.

The fair value determined at the grant date is expensed over the vesting periad, based on the Company's
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in deemed capital
coentribution from the ultimate parent, to the extent it is not recavered by the ultimate parent company.

At the end of each reporting period, the Company revises its estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimztes, if any, is recognised in
profit or 1oss such that the cumulative expense reflecls the revised gstimate, with a corresponding
adiustment to the deemed capital contribution to the extant it is net recovered by the ultimate parent
company. |n cases where the share options granted vest in instalments over the vesting periad, the
Company treats each instalment a5 a separate grant, because each instalment has a different vesting
pertod, and hence the fair value of each instalment differs.

Property, plant and eguipmant

Property plant and equipment is stated at cost extfuding the costs of day—to-day servicing, less
accumulated depreciation and accumutated impairment in value. Changas in the expected useful life are
accounted for by changing the amartisation period ar methodolagy, as appropriate, and treated as
changes in accounting estimates.

Subsequent costs incurred on an item of property, plant and equipment is recopnised in the carrying
amount thereof when those costs meet the recognition criteria as menioned abowe. Repairs and
maintenance are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation is recognised 50 as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties
under construclion) less their residual values over their useful lives. Depreciation is provided on & written

down value basis from the date the asset is ready for its intended use or put to use whichever 15 earlier, In
respect of assets sold, depreriation is provided upto the date of disposal.

As per the requirement of Schedule 1l of the Companies &ct, 2013, the Compzny has evaluated the vseful
lives of the respective fixed assets which are as per the pravisions aof Part € of the Schedule 1) for
calculating the depreciation, The estimated useful lives of the fixed assets are a3 follows:
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4.15

4.1k

4.17

Property, ptant and equipment {Continued]

Estimated vseful livaes of the assets are as follows:

Mature of assets Estimated wseful life
Building [other than Faciory Building) &l years
Furniture and fixtures 10vyears o o
Yehicles 8 years o
Office Equipment 5years
m-e o s s e e 't:;;r'é;rs” e
Computers - End user devices, such as desktops, laptops, ete. 3 year; )

Legsehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated wseful lives of the
assets or the period of lease whichever is earlier.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upen disposal or when no future sconomic
kenefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset The carrying amount of those
components which have been separately recognised as assets is derecognised at the time of replacement
thereof. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirernent of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and 15
recognised in profit or loss.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate

For transition to Ind A3, the Company has elected to continue with carrying value of all of its property,
plant and eguipment recognised as of April 1, 2017 {transition date] measured as per the previous GAAP
notified by MCA rules 2006 and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date,

Intangible assets

The Company's intangible assets mainly include the value of computer software, An intangible asset is
recognised onby when its cost can be measured reliably and it is probable that the expected futyre
economic benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the Company,

Intangible assets acguired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value as at the date of acguisition. Following initial
recogmitian, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accemulated
impairment losses. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised aver the useful economic life.

Intangikles such as software is amortised over 2 period of upto 5 years based on its estimated useful life.
Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired based on internalfexternal factors. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the




Edelweiss Comtrade Limited

MNotes to the financial statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019

417

4.18

419

4.30

Impairment of non-financial assets {Continued)

recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset er the recoverable amount of
cash generating unit which the asset belongs to is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is
reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment boss and is recognized in
the statement of profit and Ioss. IF at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previousty
assexsed impairment 1633 no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected
at the recoverable amount subject to 2 maximum of the depreciable historical cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cazh equivalent in the balance sheet comprize cash at banks ard an band and short-term
depesits with an ariginal maturity of three maonths or less.

Provislans and other contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present chligation (legal or constructive} as a result of
a past event, 1t 15 prebable that the Company will be required to setthe the obiigation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amaunt of the obligation. If the effect of the time vaiue of money is material,
pravisiens are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows o net present value using an
appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

A present obligation that arises from past events, where it is either not probable that an outflow of
respurces will be reguired to settle or a reliable estimate of the armount tannot be made, is disclosed as a
cantingent liakility. Contingent liakilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from
past events, the existence of which wilt be confirmed only by the occurrence or nen-occurrence of gne or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. Caims against the Company,
where the possibility of any outflow of rescurces in settlement is remete, are aot disclosed as cantingent
liakibities.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial staternments since this may result in the recognition of
incarme that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income s virbually certain, then the
Telated assetis not a contingent asset and i3 recagnised.

nCcome ax expenses
Ineame tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

al  Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxakle profit for the year, Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before
tax” as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are
taxahle or deductble in other years and itemns that are never taxable or deductibie, The Company's
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporTing period.
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Income tax expenses (Continued}

b) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recopnized on temporary differences between the carryicg amounts of assets and
fiabilities in the financial statements and the correspending tax bases used in the computation of taxahle
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for alt taxable temporary differences. Defarred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible termporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxahle profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised,

Deferred tax assets are also recogmisad with respect to carry forward of unused tax losses and unused tax
credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
unused tax igsses and unused tax credits can be utilised,

It is probable that taxable profit will be available against which a deductible temparary difference, unused
tax lgss or unused bax credit can be utilised when there are sufficient taxable temporary differences which
are expected 1o reverse in the period of reversal of deductible temporary difference or in periods inowhich
a tax toss can be carried ferward or back. When this is not the case, deferred tax asset is recognised to the
extent it is probable that;

&« the entity will have sufficient taxable profit in the same period as reversal of deductible temporary
difference or periods in which a tax loss can be carried forward or back; or

» tax planning opportunities are available that will create taxable profit in aopropriate periods.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewsd at the end of eath reporting period and reduced
tor the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or pan,
of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and aszets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply i the period i
which the liakility is settled gr the asset realised, based on tax rates {and tax laws} that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the {ompany expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle
the carrying amount of its assels and liabilities.

¢] Current and deferred tax far the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or [oss, except when they refate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively,

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies the management is required to make judgements,
gstimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other spurces. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered 1o be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an angoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the peripd in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the perind of the revision and future periads if the revision affects both carrent and future
periads. ,ﬁ T i‘_?ji:;ﬁ"\\\
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Edelweiss Comtrade Limited

Notes to the financial staterments
Jor the year ended March 31, 2019

L Critical accounting judgements and Key sources of estimation uncertainty {Continuwed)

Key sources of estimation uncerainty

The fallowing are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting pericd that may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assels and liakilities within the next financial year, as dascribed
helow. The Company hased i assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the Financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumnstances and assumptions about future developments,
however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that arg heyond the controb of the
Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur,

a)  Impairment of financial assets

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of finandial assets requires judgement, in
particular, the estimatien of the amaunt and timing of future cash flows and coltateral values when
determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates
are driven by a nurmber of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of allowances,

b} Accounting for deferred taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax |losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Stgnificant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based uvpon the likely
timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

The Company has recognised deferred tax assets on carried forward tax ‘osses where the Company
believes that the said deferred tax assets shall be recoverable based on the estimated future taxable
income which in turn is based on approved business plans and budpets, The losses are allowed to be
carried forward to the years in which the Company expects that there will be sufficient taxahle profits to
offset these losses,

G Standards issued but not yet effective

A5 116 Leases;

Ind A5 316 Leases replaces ind A% 17 Leases, including appendices thereto, lnd AS 116 is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after aprél 1, 2019, Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognitian,
measurgment, presentation and disclopsure of leases and requires lessees ta account for all leases under a
single on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting for finance leases under Ind AS 17 The standard
includes two recoghition exemptions for lessees - leases of ‘low-value' assets (e g., personal computers)
and short-term leases [i.e,, leasss with a lease term of 12 months or less), At the commencement date of
a lease, a lessee will recognise a liakility to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset
represening the right to use the underlying asset during the lzase term (i.e, the right-of-use asset),
Lessees will be required to separately recognise the inlerest expense on the lease liability and the
depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. The applicatian of thiz standard is nat likely to have 3
material impact on the Financal statements,

The application of these amendments is not likely to have 8 material impact on the finandal statements.




Edelweiss Comtrade Limited

Motes to the financial statements
for the yeoar ended March 31, 2018

7 Annual improvemenls to Ind AS [2018]

a)  Plan Amendrment, Cortailment or Settlement (Amendments ta Ind AS 1G]

The amandments clarify that the past service cost {or of the gain or loss on settlement] is calculated by
rmeasuring the defined benefit liability [asset] using updated assumptions and comparing benefits ofered
angd plan assets before and afer the plan amendment [or curailment or settlement] but ignoring the
effect of the asset ceiling (that may arise when the defined benefit plan is in a surplus position). The
change in the effect of the asset ceiling that may result from the plan amendment [or curtaibment or
setllement) s determined in a second step and is recognised in the normal manner in other
comprehensive income.

An entity is alse now required to use the updated assumptions from this remeasurement to determine
current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the reporting period after the change to the
Flan. In the case of the net interest, for the period post plan amendment, the net interest is calculated by
rultiplying the net defined benefit Tability [asset] as remeasured under Ind A5 19 with the discount rate
used in the remeasurement [also taking into account the effect of contnbutions and benefit payments on
the net defined benefit liability (asset]).

These amendments are to be appiied to plan amendments, curtailments or settlements accorring on or
after April 1, 201%.

bl Uneertainty over Income Tax Treatments (Appendis C of Ind A5 12)

This Appendiz sels cut how to determine the sccounting tax position when there is uncertainty over
income tax treatments. The Appendix requires an entity to:
+ determine whether uncerlain Lax positions are assessed separately or as a Company; and
= assess whether it is probable that 8 tax authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment used, or
propased to be used, by an entity in ils income tax fifings:
o If yes, the entity should determine its accounting tax position congistently with the tax
treatment used ar planned to be used in its income tax filings.
o If no, the entity shauld reflect the effect of uncertainty in detarmining its accounting tax
position.

The Appendix is effective for annual periods beginning en or after April 1, 2019. Entities can apply the
Appendix with either full retrospective application or modified retrospective application without
restatement of comparatives retrospectively or prospectively.

The application of these amendments is not likely to have a material impact an the Financial statements.




Edelweiss Comtrade Limited

Notes to the financial statements [Cantiruved)

{Currency ; indian rupees in thousands)

10

Cash and cash eqguivalents
Balances with banks
- in current accounts

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Fixed deposits (refer note 44)

Trade receivables

Receivahles considered good - Secured
Receivables considered good - Unsecured
Receivahles - Credit impaired

Less : Allowance for expected credit losses

Axat Az at As at
March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018 april 1, 2017
18,153.90 176,556.17 34,125.46
18,153.50 176,556.17 34,125.45
9,550,331 9551944 10,074.11
9,550.31 9,551.94 10,074.11
7.107.47 11,646 42 16,384.02
72118 14,4449 13 83348
21,111.61 1867341 13,946.86
28,940.36 45,708.06 36,164.36
21,111.61 18,673.41 18,046 86
7,828.75 26,095.55 17,217.50)




Edelweiss Comtrade Limited

Notes 1 the financial sratements [Continged)
[Currency : Indian rupees in thousands)]

10 Trade receivables [Continued)

Reconciliation of impairment allowanse on trade receivables:

Impairment allowance measured as per simplified approach Ampynt (T
Impairment sllowancs a3 on April 01, 2017 18,946 £6
Add: asset priginated or acquired [net) TI6.55
Impairment allawance 3¢ on March 31, 2018 1567341
Add: asset onginated or acquired [netl 1.438.20
Impairment allowance as on March 31, 2019 T aauel
Provision matrix for trade rp__:eivahles o .
Tradde receivables days past due | 190days | 91-180days ., more than 180 Total |
i days l
. i
‘Warch 31, 2019 , T , -
!?t_‘r_m_ated_mtal g_c:_:ﬁgaﬂ;,_ﬂﬁiﬁﬁﬁfﬁ'faﬁlt 1.057.88 I 427490 ° B ﬁ,ii#.ﬁ& T iﬁ;ﬁﬁﬁiﬁu
'ECL - Simplified approach o IEEE 1265.00) (20626900 T(21,131.61)
Net carrying amaunt B 868.18 162.89 | 6,797.68 78075
Wl_jﬁl_ﬂ'“ — | - = .. _.
Estimated total gross carrying amountat default | 1485008 85832 T 79.960.56  45,768.96 |
ECL- Simplified approach (Brem TT{180.14)"! {10,41567).  (19,673.81)
Mat earrying amount 14,882.48 668149, 10,554 .89 26,095 55 -
1
Apriat 207 0 ST
{Estimnated tolal gross carrying amount at default 610683 agani 2986133 36,164.96
ECL- Simplified appraach ] {10003y T {Age 30! {15,540.63]]  [18,946.86)
Net carrying amcount 6,096.20 - 11,120,700 ; 17,217.30




Edelweiss Comtrade Limited

Motes to the financial statements {Continued)

[Currency © Indian rupees in thowsands)

11

12

13

14

Leans
fot ormortised cast, unsecured, withun indiag)

Employee Leang - Grass carnying amaort

Other Financlal assets

Depesits placed with exchange

Renial deposits

Deposits others

Accrued inlergsk an reargin

Margin placed with exchangefctearing house (nex)

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind ar for vafue to be received

Current tax assets (net)

Advance income taxes

Deferred tax assets

T rereivahl
Pravision an expected credit Insses
Froperty, plant and equrprnent and intangibles

Difference between bopk and tax depreciation (including intangibles)

Emplovee benefit mbligations
Provision for compensated absences
Others {Preliminary expenses)

As at As5 at Az at
March 21, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 1, 3017
244 .87 327.03 52489
244.67 52103 524.99
3,508.00 2,500 .00 2,500.00
280.00 ZB0.00 280 M0
520.60 520.00 q20).00
BE7.31 376.81 .
434,598.75 316457 1% 324,2B7.65
1.44 138.00 113.00
439,767.50 320,771,499 32770665
497,16 4, 720.30 1.375.37
5.487.16 4,720,320 197537
5.489.02 5,115.49 555458
435,01 466,81 544.91
108,22 55.95 182.31
226.08 51 96 40%.56
6,262.33 £,034.62 710166
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Edelweiss Comtrade Limited
MNoles to the financial statemen s [Continpecd)

[Currency @ Indian rupees in thousands)

17 Oher non-financial assets
[Unsecured considersd gaod, unless stated otherwise)

CInput tax credit
Contribution to gratuity fund {net}
Prepaid expenses
Vendar Advances
Advances recoverable in cash ar in kind ar far value to be received
Advances to employees

A5 at As at A5 at

March 31, 201%  March 31, 2018 April 1, 2017
3,595.08 4.440.47 1.096.1%
1,163.00 1,395.00 T07.00
4249.24 ITRE7 551.70

31578 336.71 1,257.00
2,974.7% 2438717 1.201.75

7643 Te.42 83.38

8.494.20 %,066.24 4 896,98




Edelweiss Comtrade Limited

Matas to the financial statements {Continaed)

[Currency : Ingdian rupess in thousands)

13

19

20

Trade Payables

Total outstanding dues of micre enterprises and small enterprises
Total outsianding dues to creditors other than micro enterprises and
smatl enterprises

tingludes sundry creditors, provision for espenses and customer
payahles)

Borrowings [cther than delt securities)
{at emaortised cost, unsecared within fndio]

Loan from related parties
{repayahle on demand ptintergst role ranging 5.30% t0 2.50% [Previous
yedar 10%])

Dther financial liabilities

Cther payables

Book overdraft

Actrued salaries and benefits

Payable to exchange

Interest accrued and due on borrowings

As at As at A5 at
March 31, 20159 March 33, 20148 Apnl 1, 2017
- 11813
346,523.00 248,343.377 21233092
146,523.0d 342,343.77 212.449.05
106,894,349 220,643,12 111,794.27
106,894,334 23064312 111,7494.27
423.69 4.858.00 1,014 00
25176 - 1,084.57
2,268.81 10,261.51 12,139.05

- 163.06 163.07

60258 L1377 1,117.17
3,548.84 16,4034 15,527 .86




Edealweiss Comtrade Limited

Metes ta the financial statements [Cortineed)

{Currency ! Indian rupees in theusands}

21 Current tax liakilities [net}

Provisian for taxatian

22 Provisians

Compensated absences

23 (Hher non-financial liabilities

Withhalding taxes, Goods & service tax and other tazes payable
Others

As at Az at As at

March 31, 201%  March 31, 2018 April 1, 2017
- 974,66 &74.65

- B7&.6R 674.6E

416.27 38448 246.00

41627 384 .48 946.00
2,950,651 305181 1,454%.36

- 574497 31028

2,990.61 3,626.78 3,769 64




Edelweiss Comtrade Limited

Botas Lo tha financial stale menks [Contimued)

fCurrrency :indidn fup Cos in TRausan ns)

FL

5

Equily share capiial

Aucthnriped -
29,000,100 [Previcws year 29,000,000] equity thares of Rs. 10 each

irtued, Subtevibed and Paid up:
29,000,000 (Previans year. 29,000,000] equity shares of ke, 10 each

Mevgrment in shene capite! ©

Outstanding at the beginning of the year
Shares esued dunng the year
Catstanding at the end of the year

Terms/ighis attoched ta cquity thores :

Az at As at Asat
Warch 31, 2019 March 31, 1014 Apnl1, 3017
290,000 250, g0 230,000
290,000 250,000 T oo
p— |
290, D 290,000 B 230,000
230,000 290,000 FELALLY
March 31, X019 March 21, 20%E April 1, 2017
No of shares Amount Mo ofshares Ampunt Mg of thares Bimtunt
FLE iR 290,000 23, OOV 230000 23,240,000 230,000
- . i CHMD, QNG i)
2%, (400, ekl 253w 29, LW, e 290,000 L3000, (00 230,000

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of T 0. Each halder of equity shares 5 eatitled o o1e vate per skare kel In the event ol liguidation
of the Company, the holders af equity shares will be entitled to recerne "ermaiming assets of the Cormpany, &fter disteitinion of all preferential amounts. The distribution
will be in groportien to the number of agq ity shares held by the shareholgers.

Shares held by holding company

Halding <ompa ry

Edelweins Secunimes Limited, the helding company and it nofmanees

Edelweizs fural & Corporate Secarities Lirmited [Formerly known as
Edelweizs Carnmodiqies Services Limited], e holdng ¢om pany and its
ROMinees

CHhar pquity

Deemed capltal coatribution - ESOF - Spening baiance frefer rote
Dbefow)
Add ! Additlens during the year

Retained earnings - Opening balance
Addi Loss for the yaar
Add: Other cormprehensive negm e far he year

Retainad earm:ings - Closing balance

A% al Mareh 31, 2019 A at Mzrch 31, 20138 fsat Apnfl, 2017

Mo of shares % Moolshare; % Moofshares *
- 29, THH1. 00 10004 23, CHO0, 000 s

19,000, Dad 1IN - - -
25,000, 0 100 29,0000, 00K W0 23,000,000 o]
Adab Az al As at
March 11, 2019 march 31, 2004 Apvil 1, 207
251415 5,516.0] ER=FA-Ri ]

13.011.85} -
2.514.15 251415 5 53E. 00
228,432.24] [E74,542 BS) (174,542 B5)

117,553.54] [45.311 35 -

{34200 [3.978.00) -
|256,327.78} [176,437 24) 174,542 BE]

!253 El].ﬁ-t

[2T5,918.05)

411689,016.85)

Note : Certain employees of the company have been granted options ta acquire equity shares of the nmate Parent Company [Edelweiss Financial Services Limited). This
reserve represents the cost of these options based on their fair value at the grant dates as recognised aver the vesting penad of such aptions, ta the extent that the
Uliim ate Pargat Campany hag nol recgwersd sach cast om the Company,

P it




Edelweiss Comtrade Limited

Notes to the financlal statements (Contirued)

{Curtency : Indian rupees in thousands)

26

27

28

9

Fae income

Income from Commuodities Broking
Advisory and other fees

for the year ended
March 31, 2019

for the year ended
March 31, 2018

Below is the disaggregation of the revenue from contracts with customers:

Service transferred at a point i time
Service transferred over time
Total revenue from contract with customers

Interest lncome
On Financial assets measured at amortised Cost
Interest income on fixed deposits

Interest income an margin with brokers
Interest Income - Others

Other operating revenue

Delayed payment charges

Other income

Profit on sale of fixed assets (net)
Miscellaneous income

59,419.50 5%,804.14
134.34 43.82
59,553.84 58,847.96
59,553 .84 58,347.96
59,553.84 58,847 96
hdS.51 TOl.67
27,1321.70 22,110.00
{370.02} 25,02
27,411.19 22,836.69
. 66.48
- 66.48

2.37 -
5,094.01 702 85
5,096.38 FO2.85




Edelweiss Camtrade Limited

Notes to the financial statements [Tontfnued)

(Currency :indian rupees in thousands)

an

EF|

1

Finance costs

On Financtal [fabillties measured at amorised cost
Interest on lpan from holding company

Intecast an loan from fellow subsidiaries

Fimancial and hank charges

Interest - others

fmpairment on financial instruments

an Financial Instrumenis measured at amortised cost
Provision for expected credit loss on trade receivables

Employee benefit axpenses

Salaries and wages

Contribution to provident and other funds

Expense on Employee Stock Option Scheme {ESOP)*
Staff welfare expenses frefer note 47)

for the year ended
March 31, 2019

for the year ended
mdarch 31, 2018

. 1,385.33
21,336.38 20,876.51
14.72 0.20
1.88 2.34
21,373.98 22,264 38
1,438.20 F26.55
1.438.4 726.5%
3783026 E49.011.49
},197.50 2.632.53
13.70 (3,011 86}
1,652%.32 157598
41,693.78 80,214.14

* The Ultimate Holding Company (Edelweiss Financial Services Limited {"EF5L")) has Employee Stock Opticn Plans in force,
Based on such ESOP schemes, parent entity has granted an ESOF aption to acquire equity shares of EFSL that would vest in
a graded manner tc campany’s employees. Based on group policy [ arrangement, EFSL has charged the fair value of such
stock options, Company has accepted such cross charge and recognised the same under the employvee cost.




Edelweiss Comtrade Limited
Notes tu the financial statements {Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in thousands)
far the year ended for the year ended

March 31, 2019 31 March 2018
33 Other expenses
Advertisement and business promation {103.11) 361.32
Auditors' remuneration frefer note below) 49334 595.14
Communication 1,578.91 586.85
Computer exipenses 219.93 14405
Camputer spftware 171.00 33143
Clearing & custedian charges 122 86 12000
Electricity charges frefer note 47) 1,221 .82 2,359.11
Insurance 410.25 30724
Legal and professional fees 3,262.50 3,837.92
Loss on sale of of fixed assets - 9.47
CHice expenses 26,277.4% 17.304.98
Postage and courier 228.02 767.53
Printing and stationery 649.41 851.44
Rent {refer note 47) 5,146.50 0,480.45
Repairs and maintenance 451.33 741.61
ROC Expenses - 450.00
Goods & Service tax expenses - 0.00
Site related expenses 5.6d49.73 3,930.235
Stock exchange expenses 1,793.88 1,640.74
Travelling and conveyance 2.260.72 2.496.76
Miscellaneous expenses 2,751.90 73771
Housekeeging and security charges 4582 38 aan
Operating losses 210.88 234.18
54,2?5?.?'0 48,392.95
Auditors' remuneration:

&s Auditors A76.00 374.00

For other services 5.00 -
Towards reimbursement of expenses 112.34 221.14
4531.34 595.14




Edelweiss Comtrade Limited

Motas 1o the financial statements [Cantinoed)

(Currency : Indian rupees in thousands)

L™

Inceme Tax disclosure

a The components of income tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2019 snd March 31, 2018 are;

Particulars
Current tax
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of priot years

Deferrad tax relating to orlgination and reversal of temporary differences

Total tax charge
Current tax
Deferred tax

Reconciliation of total tax charge

Farticulars

Accouating profit before tax as per financial statements

Tax rate {in percentage)

Income tax expense calculated based on this tax rate
Adjustment in respedl of current income tax of priar years
Effect of incorne not subject to tax:

Qthers

Eflect of non-deduclible expenses:

Penaltics

Dwhers

Effect of non-recognition of deferred tax asset on current-pariod losses
Impact of tax rale changes [between two accounting periods)

Tax charge for the year recorded in statement of profit and loss

mMarch 31, 201% March 31, 2012
43691 (B82.71)
{227.71] 1067 04
209,20 184.32
435.5] [BE2.71}
{22711 1,087 .04
(27,344.32) [48,727.06)
26.00% 25.00%
(7.109.53] (12,925.04)
43691 [882.71)

- [T&3.08)

. 0.13

1.01 0.6l

G B80.81 13,552.27

- 112615

209.20 iE4.33




Edelweiss Comtrade Limited
Motes to the financial starements {Continued]
[Currency ; Indlan rupees)

3 Income Tax disclosure [Contingad)

c The folfowing table shows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and changes recorded in the Income tax expense:

Movement for the year ended March 3, 2019

- '

Gpemn-é deferr.e.-dl Recognised in ; Tatal mavement Elosmg deferred tax |
| tax asset as per | Statement of pmﬁt- . assat f as perind AS :
Ind AS & loss |
Deferred taxes in refatian to: } B - ___ T
'Fraperty, Plant and Eguipment and Intangibles 466,61 fz7eDy, Tzl 43901,
[Trade receivables 511509 373.93 ! 3783 548902
Employee beneflts ahhgatlons | $9.55 _ 238 8.26 | 108.22 |
Others ] | 352.96 [126.88)! {126.58} 226,08 |
Total o o ' 5,034.62 ! 227.71' 227.71 | 6,262.33 |
- _ ' Movement for the year ended March 31,2018
Opening deferred,  Recogaised in . Tatal mavement . Closing deferred tax | :
tax asset as per  Statement of profit 5 asset as per Ind AS
Ind A% | & foss : | i
Deferred tanes in relation to!__ . " L ] o
(LETEITED Laxes i reat |
Property, flant and Equipment and Intangibles _544 91 sz {783p) 46661
Trade receivables _ I 585458 | {729.49)  (73oa4m) _5,115.09 .
[Emplayee benefits abligations ' 29231 | {152.25); {;gg}gy! QBBEI
Others. » _ 404 86 ; {56.90) | {56.90} 352.96 |
Total ' 7.101.66 {1,067.04) | {1,067.04) 6,034.62 |

groak-up of recognition of current tax
Im Statement of Profit & Loss

| March 31, 2015

March 31, 2013

43691 |

{B82.71).




Edelweiss Comtrade Limited
Muotes ta the financial statements {Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in thousands}

34 Income Tax dischosure (Continued}

e Details of temporary differences where deferred tax assets have not heen recognised in the halance sheet

|As at March 31, 2019

" Unused tax losses

'Financial Year to which the Ipss Unabsorbed Depreciation Business Loss/ Short term capnta‘r "~ Totat
relates to o ipss L
Amount EXpiry year - Amount Expiry year- : Amount
financial year fmanclal vear
2015-16 86862! Neexpiry ;22230003 , 2023-24 | 233177.65
1 2016-17 TV Tsse) Neexpiy | 53023 011 202425 | 66841.57
2017-18 : 70530 Mo expiry | 49,286.65 2025-26 49,991.95
2018-19 ; 72633 | No expiry 25,767.72 | 2026-37 26,494.05 !
2010-11___ ' - 7.400.13 | 2018-19 7,400.13 |
Total " 3,118.81 370,786.54 | T 373,905.35 |
As at March 31, 2018 i __ __Unused tax losses o ;
'Financial Year to which the loss | Unabserbed Depreciatiun ' Business Lossf Short term :apltal Total :
irelates to ! | loss ) _: ;
" Amount | Expiryyear- Amount 1 Expiry year - | Ampunt |
[ | financial year _ f‘ nancial year. )
-2015-16 B68.62, Noexpiry _ 222,308.03 | 202324 | 223,177.65 :
201617 818561 Moexplry | 66023011 200435 . 6684157
201718 70530 ! No expiry 49,286,865  2025-26 ' 49,991.95
: 2010-11 ] - 7, 400,13 2018-19 7,400.13
gT};Eul—' o | 2,392.48 345,018.82 347,411.30 .
|As at April 1, 2017 : Unused tax losses
Financial Year to whick tha loss | Unabsorbed Depreciation Business Lossf Shart term capital Total
relates to h:ss
T "l_ Amount  Expiryyear- |  Amount | Expiryyear-  Amount
______ + .. fimancial year financial year, L
| 2015-16 | 86862  No expiry 222,309.03 | 2023-24 | 223,177.65
2016-17 ! 818.56 ; No expiry §6,023.01' 202425 | £6,841.57 |
2010-11 - 740013 0 2018-19 7,400.13
 Total o “1,687.18 295,732.17 297,419.35




Edelweiss Comtrade Limited
Motes to the financial statements [Continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in thousands)

35 Earnings Per Share

; Particulars " |‘March 31 2019 Man-:h 31 2013
|
T
1
|

! a. |Sharehalders earmﬁgs [as per Statement of Profit and loss) “__-{i?_!':g‘a‘nﬁ_d:l [49,911.35]'_
: Calculation of Weighted average number of equity shares o

29,000,000.00 _23,000,000.00

_ Number of Shares at the beginning of year_

- 6,000,000.00 i
29,000,000.00 | 29,000 ,000.00 i
29,000,000, nul 23,394,520. 55-

Mumber of Shares issued during the year .
'Tutal no of equity sahres outstanding at the end of the: year
WElghted average number of ordinary shares adjusted for the effect of

s share Ry waE T gad
| Diluted earnings per share [in Rs.) - o (095} {243




Edelweiss Comtrade Limited

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)

for the year ended March 31, 2019

fCurrency : Indian rupees in thousands)

36

Segment Reparting
Reportahble Business Segment

The Company's business is organised and management reviews the performance based on
the business segments as mentioned helow:

Sepment Activity covered |
Agency business Broking and advisory services

Capital based income from treasury operations, investment and dividend
business income |

Income for each segment has been specifically identified. Expanditure, assets and liabilities
are either specifically identifiable with individual segments or have been allocated to
segments on a systematic basis,

Based on such allocations, segment disclosures relating to revenue, results, asssts and
liakilities have been prepared.




Edelweiss Comtrade Limited
Notes to the financial statements {Continued}
far the year ended March 31, 2019

fCurrency : Indian rupees in thousands)

36 Segment Reporting {Continued)

Repurtahle Busmess Segmem

____E - C T T T For the year ended For the year ended -
i Partiedlars _ March 31, 2013 March 31, zuls__
.1 | Segmentrevenwe 1 - e e
i | Income from erternal customers 0 _ S

Agency business o o _:r_______ ... 3,93637 _532,253_?_53_5

...Capital based business i
i Unallocated :

2 Segm ent result

Agendy busmess _ [2}':5&5."3_5-]_5__

e e e e e e e i e = e e ma

. _ Capital based business
| __ _Unallocated

I ot eeeme et o e e e e e 7, 324 331 : -

B : 104
| Totalintome ) . o0ei4r T

. _kess : Provision for taxation

Loss before taxation (27,344.33) |

209.20 :

Profit/ {loss) after taxation S o {2?,55353}'

3 : Segment assets

__i Capital based business

i Unallocated e b EL75888
jYotal 496,550.43

. :
_.i Agency business _ i 1484,799.94 |
|

933
82 453, 93

R
|
|

149,922.29)

| (5727.08)
_ #.727.08) |

149,911 39] [

54340115 |

10,754.91
553,156,065

4| Segment liabilities R
Agency business b 460371307
R _._C_?E_'EE.'_'_E_*‘.%"“ '?“5”"‘-'_5_‘4‘______._._. e __;_____._._.__ L

Unallpeated

5 L‘aﬁlt“al 'Expendrture
; Agency business

Total L 860373.07

488,393.49

' __| Ccapital based husiness S
Unallocated I
o Yotal 3751 735.68 |
E_i Deprt_a_ql_a_l_tl_gp_ar_ld amnrin_{ét'inn T _:_ :_ o .!
|- Agenty business .. B1s09: 633,02
Capitai based business B _ LDt
: . Unallocated U S L
t i Total .2 =2 633.02
7 _____Q_t_lle_!'_pnn cash expenditure . o )
... Agencybusiness 1,468.93 165.03
i Capital based business : ' . .
P p 4,\.%.0,1_ . e .
:__ _l.__l_nallntated i AN -
| _ ... Total " _ 146995 © 165.03




Edelweiss Comtrade Limited

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)

for the vear ended March 21, 2019

{Currency : Indian rupees in thousands)

37

Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 - Employee benefits

{a) Defined contribution to provident fund, employee state insurance fund and employees death

linked Insurance

Amount of T1,838.94 thousand [Pravious year: ¥ 2,495.53 thousand) is recognized as expenses

in “Employee benefit expenses” — Note 32 in the statement of profit and lass.

(t) Defined benefit plans {Gratuity}

The following tables summarise the components of the net ermployee benefit expenses
recognised in the statement of profit and loss, the fund status and amount recognised in the

balance sheet for the gratuity benefit plan.

Reconciliation of Defined Benefit Obligation (D20}

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 |
Present Value of DBD at start of the year 4,.371.00 10,363 .00
Service Cost
8. Current Service Cost A?EJJD Ef-&p[_}_
b. Past Service Cost ; -
€. Lossf(Gain] from Settlement . ) O
Interest Cost 278,00 366.00 ;
Benefits Paid [259.00) [2,14%.001
Re-measurements ]
a. Actuagrial Lossf{Gain} from changes in demographic
assumptions : i
b. Actganal Lossf[Gain) from changed in financiails 33.00 (58.00} i
assumptions o
¢. Actuarial Lossf{Gan) from experience over fast past year 257.00 22100
Effect of acquisition [ {divestiture) - -
Chanpges in foreign exchange rate - -
Transfer (Out) {(%07.00) {4,820.00)
Present Value of DBO at and of the year 4,735.00 4,371.00

Reccnciliation of Fair Value of Plan Assets

March 31, 201149

March 21, 2018

Fair Value of Plan Assets at start of the year 9,737.00 11,070.00
Contributions by Emplayer - -
Benefits Paid {252.00} {2,145.00}
Interest Income Plan Assets 67100 660.00
Re-measurements

Return on plan assets excluding amount including in net :

interest an the net defined benefit liability f [asseg"t:l 48.00 IF 136.00
Effect of acquisition { {divestiture) - | o
Changes in foreign exchange rate _ - - -
Fair Value of Plan Assets at end of the ypar iﬁ,ié?.m ; & 73700
Actua! Return an Plan Assets 81600

Expected Emplayer Contributions for the caming year

719.00




Edelweiss Comirade Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

for the year ended Morch 31, 2019

[Currency : Indian rupees in thousands)

37

Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 - Employee henefits {Continued)

Reconciliation of Asset ceiling

March 21, 2015

‘March 31, 2013

Assets ceiling at start of the year i 3,8971.00 -
Interest Income on Assets cefling 278.00 -
Ag-megsyrements H
Changes in the effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset i
o the asset celling excluding amaunt included in net interest a0.H 3.371.00
on the net defined benefit liabilityf {asset)
Assets ceiling at end of the year 4,309.04) 3.971.0:0
Expenses recognised in the Stalement of Profit and Loss

. March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Service Cost
a.Current Service Cost 472.00 448.00
br.Past Service Cost - =
c.Loss/{Gain) fram Settlement - -
Metf Interest on net defined benefit liability / {asset) {115.00) (294 .00)
Changes in foreign exchange rate . :
Employer Expenses 357.00 15400 |

Met Liabilivy f {Asset]) recognised in the Balance sheet

arch 31, 2019

March 31, 2018 |

Present Value of OB 4,785%.00 4,371.00
Fair Value of Plan Assets 13,192.00 g.737.00 !
Liability / [Asset) recognised in the Balance Sheet [5412.03) {5,366.00) 2'
Funded Status [Surplus/ {Deficit}} 5,412.00 5,366.00 1
- —— 3
Less: Amount nu.t. recognized ats assef |Effect of limiting net 4,309.00 3.971.00
assets to asset ceiling]
Met {Liability)/ Asset recognised in the Balance Sheet 1,103.00 1,395.00
Of which, Short term Liability - -
Experience Adjustment on Plan Liakilities{Gain)/Loss 257.00 _221.00
Experignce Adjustment on Plan Assets:{Gain}/Loss | - 76.00




Edeiweiss Comtrade Limited

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)
for the year ended March 31, 2019

{Currency : lndian rupees in thousands)

a7 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 - Employee benefits {Continued)

Percentage Break-down of Tatal Plan Asselx:

Actuarial assumgtions:

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Equity instruments 0.0% 0.0%
Celt instruments 0.40% - 0.0%
Real estate 0.0% 0.0% 1
Derivatives 0.0% 0.0
Investment Funds with Insurance Company 99.5% 39,55
OF which, Unit Linked 7% FEKY
OF which, Troditionalf Nan-Unit Linked 26.8% 26.2%
Asset-backed securities 4.0% 0.0
Structured debt D.0% 0.0%
Cash and cash equivalents . 05% o 05%
[Total 00w 1000%)

March31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Salary Growth Rate (4 p.a. Hip.a 7% p.a
Discount Kate {% p.a.] 6.7%p.a 7%pal
Withdrawal Rate (% p.a.} . ]
Senior 13% p.a 13% p.a
i Middedle 0% p.a 30% p.a
i fumior 60% p.a 60% p.a
Mortaliy IALM 2012-14 TALR 2006-08
{Ultimate] {LEtimate)
Interest Rate on Net DBOY [Asset] (% pa.) 7% p.a 5.6% p.a
Expectad Weighted Average Remaining Warking Life {years) 2 Years 2 Years




Edelweiss Comtrade Limited

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)

for the vear ended March 21, 2019

{Currency : Indian rupeas in thousands)

37

Disclosure pursuant ta Ind A5 19 - Employee benefits f{Continued)

Movement in Other Comprehansiva Income:

March 31, 2119 ®arch 31, 2012
Balance at start of year - (Loss}/ Gain =~ _ NL* MIL*
Re-meogsurernents on DEG !
a.Actuarial Loss/{Gain} from changes in demagraphic i _
asswmptions A
I:-.Al:tuanl'ial Lassf{Gain) frarn changed in financials 133.00) £8.00
assumptions
c. Actuarial Loss/[Gain) from experience over last past year {297.00} ! {221.00) |
v Re-measurements on Plon Assers I i
_Heturn on plan assets .e-xcludmg amlr::wj'F including in net A8.00 156.00
interest on the net defined benefit liahility / {asset)
Re-meosurements on Asset Ceiling i
Changes in the effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset !
to the asset ceiling excluding amount incuded in net interest [60.00) [3,571.00) .
on the net defined benefit liabilityf {asset)
Balance at end of year - Loss (342.00) (3,973.00)

*Imd AS is being adopted from FY. 2018-15 and date of transition being April 1, 2017 so disclpsures

are for comparative purpose only,

Sensitivity Analysis:

"

DOB increases § (decreases ) by March 31, 20189 March 31, 2018
1% Ingrease in Salary Growth Rate 171.40 146.00
1 % Decrease in Salary Growth Rate {161.04) ; {138.00}
1% lncrease in Discount Rate {160.00) {137.00}
1 % Decrease in Discount Rate i 173.00 142.00
1% Increase in Withdrawal Rate : {3.00) {7.00) |
1 % Decrease in Withdrawal Rate i _ oo o _SDQ{
Martality (Increase in expected lifetime by 1 year) ._Megligible Change | Negligible Change
Muortality (Increase in expected difetime by 3 year) | Negligible Change | Negligible Changa ]

Movement in Net [Liabillty)/ Asset:

B March 31,2019 T Mareh 31, 2018
Net Asset at start of year 1,395.00 | J07.00
Met [Acquisition) / Divestiture - -
Met Transfer {Injf Out 407.00 4,820,00
Mavement during the year o L
Current Service Cost o far2on | . (aa8.00)
Past Service Cost - -
Met Interest on net DBO 115.00 294.00 |
Changes in foreign exchange rate - -
Re-measureaments _ [342.00] [2,978.00]
Contributions / Benefits P T N FUU ]
Surplus at eng of year ’ 1,103.00 1,39500
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Edelweiss Comtrade Limited
Notes to the financial slatements {Continuad}

{Currency : Indian rupees in thousands)

40 Change in liabilities arising from financing activities

[ 777 Harticuiars ) " Aprii1, 2018 | Cash Amount expensed in  March 31, 2019
| flows statement of profit
; | and foss '
Borrowings other than debt securities ' 220,643.12 f_].i_:i_,_?iﬂ?iﬁ_]______ __ N B _;ﬂﬁ,gq-l__siq
"Cther financial liabilities (accured Interest on | 1,877 {21,795.18); 21,378.98 602.58 |
borrowings) | i
ITotal liakiities fram financing activities ! 221,661.59 [135,543.94] 21,374.98 - 107,495.593 '
i Particulars "'_ﬁ;:;il 1, 017 | " tash  Amount e:r:uznsed in i March 31, 2018 |
i : flaws statement of profit | |
L : and loss | |
'Borrowings other than delt securities 1111,734.27 108,848.85 - , ) ___1‘_1:1;;@4_?._._1__2_?
Other financial iabities [accured Interest on 1,117.17 : {22.351?3}' 22,264.38° 101877

borrowings) . " . - ; :
'Total lighilities from financing activities 112,911.44 | 86,486.07 | 2}, 26438 | 2121.661.89




Edelweiss Comtrade Limited

Motes to the financizal statements {Continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in thousands)
41 Contingent liabilities, Capital and other commitments

a. Legal claims

The Company operates in 3 regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has a heightened
element of litigation risk inherent in its oparations. As a result, the Company is involved in various
litigation, arhitration and regulatory proceedings in the ordinary course of its business. The Company
has formal controls and policies for managing legal ciaims. Based on professional legal advice, the
Company provides and/or discloses armounts in accordance with its accounting policies. At year end,
the Company had several unresolved legal claims however individually any of the claim is not
material. The aggregate value of claim against the Company is ¥ 121.76 thousand.

b. Contingent fiabilities

Particulars March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018
{a) Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debt 121.76 321,76
{b} Taxation matters 8,903.43 585.43

¢. Capital and other commitments

Capital commitments - Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital
account and not provided for ¥ Nil (Previous year : T 171.61 thousand {net of advances)




Edelweiss Comtrade Limited

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)

for the year ended March 31, 2019

[Currency : Indian rupees in thousands)

42

Disclosure of Related parties as required under ind AS 24 - “Related Party Disclosure®

[a} Names of related parlies by whom control is exercised

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited Ulttimate holding company

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Servicaes Limited?* Holding compary from March 29, 2012
{Formerly Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited)

Edelweiss Securities Limited Holding company till March 29, 2019

{b) Fellow subsidiaries with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

EC Commodity Limited

Ecap Eguities Limited **

ECL Finance Limited

Edelcap Securities Limited

Edelweiss Broking Limited

Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited

Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limitad
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited

Edelweiss Securities Limited {from 29th Mar 2019

*Ede! Commopdities Limited and EFSL Trading Limited was merged into EFSL Comtrade Limited
vide Order of National Company Law Tribunal at Hyderabad. Further With effect from the
Appointed Date i.e. August 1, 2018, EFSL Comtrade Limited, Edelweiss Business Services
Limited, Edelweiss Agri Value Chain Limited, Edelweiss Capital Markets Limited and Edelweiss
Fund Advisgors Limited have heen merged into Edebweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
{Formerly Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited). Hence all related pary transactions
transacted during the year and the cutstanding balances thereof, a: at the end of the year
relating to the Merged are considered to be transacted with Edelweiss Rural & Corporate
Services Limited and disclosed accordingly,

**Pursuant 1o the Scheme of amalgamation (“the 5cheme®) under Sections 230 to 232 of the
Companies Act, 2013 | the Act) and the Rules made there under | the Rules), as sanctioned by
the Mational Company Law Tribunal , Mumbai Bench vide its orders dated August 23, 2017 and
the Maticnal Company Law Tribunal, Hyderabad Bench vide its arder dated April 11, 2013,
Olive Business Centre Limited {“the First Transferor Company”], Burlington Busingss Solutions
Limited ("the Second Transferor Company”), Auris Corporate Centre Limited {“the Third
Transferor Company”], Serenity Business Park Limited (“the Fourth Transferor Company”) and
Eternity Business Centre Limited {“the Fifth Transferor Company”) {collectively referred to as
the Transferor Companies}, the wholly owned subsidiaries of ECap Equities Limited, [the
Transferee Company] had been amalgamated with the Transferee Company with effect from
April 1, 2017 ("the Appointed Date”). The Scheme has been effective fram April 21, 2018 {"ihe
Effective Date”].

Accordingly, all the related party transactions entered during the year and the gutstanding
balances thereof as stated at the end of the year relating to the Transferor Companies are
considered to be entered with the Transferee Company and.
refated party transactions disclosure of the Company B




Edelweiss Comtrade Limited

HNetes ko the financial slatements {Continoed)

Far the year endad March 31, 2010

|[Cusrersy: dndan rupers ur thowsards)

42  Disclosure ol Related partes as required under Ind AS 24 “Bglated Party Qlscdasure” fCantidred]

1=l

Transaclhons with relabed parties :

:r. Matore of Transacton Redated Party Mame March 311, dp1g March 21, 2018
0
Capital account wangactions durlng the year
i Issre of equity shares ta Edelwinss Sccunles o mied 50,0010 £0
Current Homunt transactions.
2 Erastrerrn laart 3aken from Edrehworiys Rural & Carporate bernoces benited (refe: note ) 22T 054 86 343,149,085
3 EFaT terem Inars cepaid to Edelwrias Bural & Corporate Serv: es vvited (refe- note &) 20005 156, TT1.87
Ed*lwding Frnangial Suraices mited frefer agie 2 . 53 %30 1%
a4 Margn #aced with EC Carnmadity Limited frefer apte 13 152871 16 114,239.6°1
Edehwriss Custerigl Serages Lirmibed frefer apre 17 A5t 56285
5 Margr withdrawn from EC Cornmcdity Lirmiced (refer note 13 GZ2,b00.74 A0 51455
& Momiratgr geposit greer to Edelwiiss Secunmies - inited - 30D 0
7 Nomiralor depaosit regeived fram Edrlueiss Secuntes cmited - 0010
3 eterest padonloan Cdelweivs Rural & Co-porate Seraces Limigad IR0 20 BTE5L
L Igelss Fraansal Sorveses Lirmited - 1355.11
9 interesb iacamie o b argin EC Cammadity Limited 14,829 M3 £2.10% 5%
Edrelweiss Custeoal Semades Limited 2.20%.40 -
12 Clesring chargyy paid te EC Cammadity Limited 713 120.08
Edechwtine Cuvipd il Goraces Limked 14 #1 -
11 Reirburiemaent pad (o Cdehwriss Rural & Corporate bereces Lemited (Reler rede 49 iTAIGAR ETTSE06
Edetwelss Fiaaniid]l Semd ed Lirmited 28.61 B.24: 5i
Edrhueiss Hrghor g Lemiked - £61.58
12 Aeirnburserment redsived fram Tdelweiss Brakirg Limiked L -
11 Coxtrermbursement pod e Edrlwriss Brahur g Lirmited 2491710 7,271 %3
cdelwmss Minancial Services cenited 1.841.60 1.2x3 67
Edi lweizs Socurics ©omited 13ta7 1,065 02
Edrhweiss Rural & [ orporate Servces Lomeed L BFoEl
Ecap Eguities Limited ELL Y 9E.23
Edit lwrtizs Mauyvrg France Limted - Sl 63
14 CastreimbBorsernert recovered from Edelweiss Broirg Limiked - 111 =
15 Aentpad to Edelwsis: Rural & Corporare Seraze timited CEE. G 1,471%°
ECap Equitics Limiter A1 1T 1,110 3C
Edelwriya Brasirg Limited Z0.4B 216 F&
ECL Sinance Limited . a0kr 24
I8 Buainess soppart wervice charges paidto Edelweiss Rural & Corporace Seraces Limited (Refer retr 4) 2555187 16,561 51
17 'Waobslte related chargo: paid to Ede lweizs Fural & Cerpgrate Serares Lemibed (Refer rae 41 AL 3,950.25
18 Fieed astets purehased from Cdrhweiss Hows rg Forance Limzled 17.65
Edelwers Globad Wea'th Management Limited 1.7} -
Edelwrss Brodury omnited 6157
[delweiss S=curdies .. mitad 3143
19 Fieed assess sold b Edelwerss Hnusirg F.rance Lim:tad 13.1%
Edelwriss Brohue g Linmited 6.73




Eedelweiss Comtrade Limated

irobes to the financial statements {Conginued)

for the year ended March 31, 2019

[Corréngy: irgan n.poesin thousars)

a1 Dizdosure of Related partics a5 required under Ind AS 29 "Related Party Disdhosre” [Courtinaed)

{c}  Tranwsctions with related parties {Canfinued |:

:: Hatwre of Transaction Ralated Party Hams brauch 31, 2029 March 3t, 2018
Balances with related partiss

1 Tty share capital heds by Edelwaiss B L iites Lirmited - G
Edelweiss Rural B Carporate Scrvices Liniged 20000 [H) .

2 Short verm barrowings Edelweiss Aural & Carporate Seivices Limited |Refer nate 1) 10E. 894,15 ol EA ]

3 Trare Payatles to Edelweiss Au-al & Carporate Srraces Limibed |Refer none 4) £3.210.28 10,125 8
Cdelweiss Lroking |imites - 2.551 14
Edelwerss hinanc-al berices Lirtbea ar :
Egelwieins Segunngs Linvred 5%.47 T1.EL
E<ap Ecudizs LirmrTed 12063 194 5
EC Commndity Lim 4egd 1.:3 -
Edelwrist Haasing Firarce mited 11

4 her payables ta Edelwmis Sraking Lim e 10t G 2. 335.0C
Edelwensy Aural & Corporaty Semvices Limites [Refer noa 4) 300 1,213
ECL Firarse Lirited 244 (2 1,000 00
Edelwiriss Fina-ie 3l Seivices Limritee 1189 .
Edelw iy £ usbucdial Survices Lim.Lisd a1

) Merest accrues and doe o loar taken Edelwerits Rurql & Carporale Serices Limites Lo Sh 1.C1&. 7

& Ortker receavable from Ecelweizs Aural B Carporale Senices Limiter - 107
Edelcap Securtnss =miled - 3o
Edelwiiny Secyritios [ F5C Limited e -

7 Arrpaid Expenses Ecelweizs Firnand: al Seivices Limited 164,52

8  Accrued irtereyt on margin EC Commodiey Limilea . A7 A1
Edelwriss Custadial feryices Limites Bat A1 -

9 Margin plaged with clearing hoae EC Com wodity Limte - WA AR 1R
Ecelweist Cuftadial Lo rvices Liitry 311 54T E8 -

Hat 1 - Loan given®aken toffrom parties and reargin reerey placed | refura fecrmed wiibf frem related parties aep 26 ased basere o the maximem
sngegmerial apngunt givenaken aad glaced o refurd received during 1he reparting pened
Nete 2 Dascinsure unger see-or L36[d) of the Comparirs Act, 2013 for laans and guarartae . Loars Fave bren greea las gerira bl soesy ol oo se.

Mot 3t nformatar relatrg to remuneration pais o key manageral peean menhioned Above et ludes proswar nace fae ¢-aturty, legve cacasemens; and

dufeared borus which aee providis for group of emaleyoes on ar sverall bawe, These arc inglyded oo cash bass, The vanabl: < smperiation mcudes breon 5 an
cash Basis
M  : Edelwedy Business Serages imted, Edelweiss Bgn Walie Crain umited, Edelwens Capstal Warkets Deded, Edelweess Ford Sdsees & TFS. Toatrade
Limited have feer merged inka Edclweiss Aural & Corparate Somices Limitee [Fomeely Edrlweenss Commodiees Seraies Larled),




Edelweiss Comtrade Limited

Notes to the financial staterments (Continued)

for the year ended March 31, 2019

{Currency : Indian rupees in thousands)

43.

Capital managemenr

The primary ohjectives of the Company’s capital management policy are {0 ensure that the
Company complies with externally imposed capital requirements and maintains strong credit
ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximise shareholder
value,

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it according to changes
in ecanpgmic conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities, In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue capital securities. No changes have keen
made to the objectives, policies and processes from the previous years. However, they are
urder constant review by the Board.

In addition to above, the Company is required to maintain minimum networth as prescribed
by various regulatory authorities. The management ensures that this is complied.




Edelweiss Comtrade Limited

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)
for the year ended March 31, 2019

{Currency : Indian rupeas in thousands}

44, Risk Management

The company has operations in India. Whilst risk is inherent in the Company’s activities, if is
managed through an integrated risk management framework, including ongoing
identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk Iimits and other controls. This
process of risk management is critical to the Company's continuing profitability. The
Company is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. It it also subject to various
operating and business risks

Risk management structure

The Board of Directors are responsible for the overall risk management approach and for
approving the risk management strategies and principles.

The Board has appeinted the Risk Committee which is responsible for monitoring the overal
risk process within the Company and reporis to the Audit Committee.

The Risk Committee has the overall responsibility for the development of the risk strategy
and implementing principles, frameworks, policies and limits.

The Global Risk Group is responsible for implementing and maintaining risk related
procedures to ensure an independent control process is maintained. The Group works
tlosely with and reports to the Risk Committee, to ensure that procedures are campliant
with the overall framework.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss the Company may face due to current/potential
inzhility or unwilingness of a customer or counterparty to meet financial fcontractual
obligations. Credit risk also covers the possibility of lasses associated with diminution in the
credit quality of receivables. The Company has adopted a policy of dealing with creditworthy
counterparties and obitains sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating
the risk of financial loss from defaults.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk emanates from the possible mismatches due to differences in maturity and
repayment profile of assets and liabilities. To avoid such a scenario, the Company has
maintained cash reserves in the form of Fixed Deposits, Cash, Loans which are callable any
time at the Company’s discretion, etc. These assets carry minimal credit risk and can he

liguidated in a very short period of time. These would ke to take care of immediate
obligations while continuing to hongor commitments as a gotng concern.
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Edelweiss Comtrade Limited
Notes to the financial statements {Continued)
{Currency * Indian rupees in thousands}

&1 Risk Management [Continuwed)

Collateral held and other credit enbancements

The tables on the following pages show the maximum exposure to credit risk by class of financial asset. They also
shovws the tatal fair value of collateral, any surplus collateral {the extent to which the fair value of coilateral held is
greater than the exposure to which it relates), and the net expasure to credit risk.

As 3t March 31, 2019

Maximum exposure to Principal type of collateral

credit risk [carrying
amount before ECL) |

Finan cial assots

Loans

24467 | Unsecured

Trade receivables (Gross)
IOther financial assets
“Total

'38,340.36

435,767.50 | Unsecured

468,952.53 |

As at March 31, 2018

;Fi-l.‘.lé.l-'lcial assets

Maximum expos_ u“rm'i_P'r'ln:ipa'l t_'grpe of coliateral
credit risk {carrying
amount befare ECL)

5 £ cuUrities, Hr:rn_.i_: G__uqrgr:_ree etr,

Loans:

Loans B
Trade receivables [Gross)

337,03 . Unsecured

45,768.96 | Securities, Bank Gt{qmntef.: etc.

|Other financial assets

320,771.99 , Unsecured

As at April 1, 2017

I, ~ -
‘Financial assets

366,867.98 |

! Maximum exposure ta iPrincipaI type of collateral

credit risk [carrying !
amount befare ECL]

iLoans:

Loans

524.93 _ tinsecured

Trade receiva bles [Gross)

36,164 .36 Se;'cun'n'es, Bonk Guorantee e

o

———— ——— —_—————

Other financial assets

327, 710665 Unsecured

Tatal

364,396.00




Edelweiss Comtrade Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
{Currenty  Indian rupees in thousands)
44 Risk Management {Continued)
Analysis of Financial assets and liabilities by Industry risk concentration

Industry analysis - Risk concentration for March 31, 2019

‘Particulars " Financhal services | Retail Total
Financial assets - - -
iCash and cash equivalent 27,704.21 | . 27,704.21 -
iand uther bank balances - : '
| Trade and other receivables - . . Tms7s 782875,
Other Financial Assets L o 43976750 -  439,767.50,
. Loans 244 67 - 244.67 |
[Towl "__==4£??1533 : 7,828.75!  475,545.13 |
Industry analysis - Risk concentratian far March 31, 2018 . o N T §
[Particulars . | Financial services  _Retail _ _ Total
‘Financial assets . - -
.Cash and cash equivalentand other bank batances 186,108.11 - _' 186,108.11
| Trade and otherreceivables e - 2809555 26,085.55
Other Financial Assets ; 320,771.99 - 320,771.59 .
Loans o 327.03 - 327.03
Total o | 507,207.13 26,095.55 | 533,302.68
Industry analysis - Risk cancentration for April 1, 2017
Particulars o  Financial services  Retal |  Total
Financial assets ‘ - - .
Cash and cash equiualé}uand other bank |:I_§_|EI_1’1_I:_Z_é!_i___-_.:_ ) 44,199.57 b o= 4419957
Trade and otherreceivables ; 17,217.50 17,217.50
| Other Financial Assets | 32770685, - 327,706.65
‘Loans i 524.99 | - 524.99

i Total i 372,431.31 17,217.50 389, 648.71
— T T ——— T T T e |
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Edelweiss Comirade Limited

Notes to the financial statements [Continuwed}

(Currency : Indian rupees in thousands)

45

Mote 1
Mote 2

Folloewing table sets out availability of assets to support funding
IMarch 31, Zm_“ o f’!edgg as | Others frefer I Available 35 Others frefer  Total carrying
collatersl | note I below) | collateral  note 2 belaw) ameunt
| Cash and cash equivalent 9,550.31 - | 1815390 - T 2770421
including bank balance T | R e
. Trade receivables [ S - 782875 - MB8T5
loans - . - 24467 | - 284567
Other financial assets - | wouseasal | m0ef’ ., 43976750
Property, plant and equipment - - 75052 - 750.52
| Cther non financial assets - - 8,504.28 | - 8,504.29
 Total assets o 9,550.31'  431,562.88 |  43.686.75 ! - ' aBa,799.94
‘March 31._2W_ ) : Pledge as Others frefar ! Available as | Others frefer Tai-a'i::'arﬁﬁn'g_-
! collateral  note 1 befow) | collatera) | note 2 belaw] amaout
| cash and cash equivalent 9,551.94 | - 176,556.17° - 186,108.11 :
including bank balance : | o
 Trade receivables - 2608555 - 2609555
loans - - 327.03 . - a3
Other financial assets - 309,886.18 10,885 81 - 320,771.59
| Property, plant and equipment - - 1,02178 , - 1,021.78 |
[ Other non financial assets - - 9,076.68 | - 9,076.58 |
f'Tutat assets } 9,551.94 30988618 ' 223.963.0 . - | 54340113

|April 1, 2017 Pledge as . {thers frefer | Available as | Dthers {refer | Total carrying ]
_collateral  notelbefow} | collatera) I note 2 befow)  _amount
Cash and cash equivalent 10,074.11 - r 319,125.46 - 44,195 57
including bank balance I .
Trade receivables - - | 17arso - 17,217.50
loans _. - 52898 .. - . . 52489
Other financial assets - 322,481.13 522533 - . 33170665
Property, plant and equipment . .. 150334, D . 50334
, Other nen financial assets - - 491555 | - 4,015.55 |
| Totalassets 10,0741 | 32248112, 6351237 - 395,067.60 |

Represents assets which are not pledged and it is restricted from using to secure funding for legal or ather reason

Represents assets which are not restricted for use as collateral, but that the Company would not consider readily

available to secure funding in the normal course of business




Edelweiss Comtrade Limited

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)

[for the year ended Morch 31, 2019

[Currency : Indian rupees in thousands)

44.

a7,

48,

49,

50.

Additicnal disclosure on fixed deposits

a} Fixed deposits aggregating to T 4,000.00 thousand {previous year; T 4,000.00 thousand)
have heen pledged with exchanges for meeting base capital requiremsnt,

Cost sharing

Edebweiss Financial Services Limited, heing the holding company along with fellow subsidiaries
incurs expenditure like Group mediclaim, insurance, rent, electricity charges etc. wihich is for the
common benefit of itself and its certain suhsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries including the Company.
This cost so expended is reimbursed by the Company on the basis of number of employees. On
the same lines, branch running casts expended (if any) by the Company for the benefit of fellow
subsidiaries is recovered by the Company. Accordingly, and as identified by the management, the
expenditure heads in note 25 and 26 include reimbursements paid and are net of reimbursements
received based on the management’s hest estimate.

Brokerage income is disclosed net of related {i} sub-brokerage expences ¥ 34 77021 thousand
{previous year ¥ 31,466.80 thousand) and (i) stock exchange expense ¥ {373.08 thousand)
[previous year T 272.54 thousand).

Details of dues ta Micro enterprises and Small enterprises

Trade Payables includes Rs. Nil {Previous vear: Rs, Nil} payable to "Suppliers” registered under
the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. No interest has been paidf is
payable by the Company during the year to “Suppliers” registered under this Act. The
aforementioned iz based on the responses received by the Company to its inguiries with
suppliers with regard to applicability under the said Act.

First-time adoption - mandatory exceptions, aptional exemptions

The Company has prepared the opening balance sheet as per Ind AS as of April 1, 2017 {the
transition date)] by recognising all assets and liabilities whose recognition is required by Ind A%, not
recoghising items of assets or liabilities which are not permitied by Ing AS, by reclassifying items
from previous GAAP to ind AS as required under Ind AS, and applying tnd AS in measurement of
recognised assets and liabilities. However, this principle is subject to the certain exception and
certain optional exemptions availed by the Company as detailed below.




Edelweaiss Comtrade Limited

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)

for the year ended Morch 31, 2015

{Currency ; Indian rupees in thousands)

51.

First-time adaption — mandatory exceptions, opticnal exemptions (Continied)

Exemptions applied

a}

b)

c

d)

Deracognition of financial assets and financial liahilities

" The Company has applied the derecognition requirements of financial assets and financiat

lizhilities prospectively for transactions occurring on or after April 1, 2017 {the transition
date).

Impairment of financial assets

The Company has applied the impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 retrospectively;
however, as permitted by Ind A5 101, it has used reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or eFfort to determine the credit risk at the date that
fimancial instruments were initially recognised in order to compare it with the credit risk at
the transition date. Further, the Company has not undertaken an exhaustive search for
information when determining, at the date of transition to Ind ASs, whether there have
been significant ingreases in credit risk since initial recognition, as permitted by ind A5 101,

Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment, investrment property, and intangible assets

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying valuz of all of its plant and
gquipment, investment properly, and intangible assets recognised as of April 1, 2017
ftransition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its
deemed cost as of the transition date.

Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

The Company has applied Appendix C of Ind AS 17 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease to determine whether an arrangement existing at the transition date
contains a lease on the basis of facts and circumstances existing at that date,

Share-based payments

The Company has applhied the requirements of Ind AS 102 Share-based payment to eguity
instruments that are urvested as of the transition to ing AS (Aprit 1, 2017).




Edelweiss Comtrade Limited

Meles to the financial statements [Continved)

[Currency : Indian rupees in thoutands)
51 First-time adoption - mandatory exceptions, opticnal exemptians [Tontinued)

Reconciliatian of Net Prafit for the year ended March 31, 20018 as reported under erstwhile Indian 5A4P and ind A5 are summarised as
below;

Yaar Endi;;[q
Particulars htarch 31, 20183

4

. l5630124]}

Met profit after tax as reps rticj__uwii:_!f{ Indiarn GAAF
Ind AS adjustments increasing f {decreasing) net profit as reported
under Indian GAAF:

Effective interest rate on financial assets and liabilities (net) -

mr e A e - - A T LT A L e

ESOP fair va]u:E thargim i

e et i emp e e e e e s msbrmm e o 7 B0

7

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans {actuarizl gains / losses) za7z00k

Cther Comprehensive income after tax as per Ind A% ! o [3,878 .00

Total Cornprehensive }ncnme_ﬂ:l_e_r_lnd AS ; {5_3,53_5_’.!.3__5_]?
Cther Comprehensive Incame primarily includes impact of re-measurement gainslosses on actuarial valuation of past employment defined

henefits.

feconciliation of Netwoerth as reported under ershwhile Indian GAaP and Ind AS are summarised as below;

N - I = atj e ;r
Particulars March 31, 2013i April 1, mni

- - 42 s e -— remr o e |
Shareholder's Equity as rEpanEd_l.fnj:_Ig_r_[lj_@lan GAAR L ﬂg:_l:ﬂal.ﬂlrl o E[.']fﬂmﬁ;:l_"ui_!
shareholder's Equity as per Ind AS i . £4 ES_:L‘_JIJ N __I*Eq_:gj}l‘.;lﬁuj

Statement of cash flows
The transition from Indian GAAF to Ins A% has not a materal Impact on the statement of cash flawe.




Edelweiss Comtrade Limited
Notes to the financial statements {Continued)

Jor the year ended Maorch 31, 2015

{Currency : Indian rupees in thousands)

52. Previous year comparatives

Previous year's numbers bave been regrovped and rearranged wherever necessary ta confirm to
current year's presentation [ ¢lassification.
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